BARBICAN ESTATE RESIDENTS CONSULTATION COMMITTEE Monday, 24 November 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee held at Guildhall on Monday, 24 November 2014 at 6.30 pm

Tim Macer - Willoughby House (Chairman) Randall Anderson - Shakespeare Tower Averil Baldwin - Thomas More House Robert Barker - Lauderdale Tower Helen Wilkinson - Speed House Robin Gough – Defoe House Dr Gianetta Corley – Gilbert House David Graves – Seddon House

John Tomlinson - Cromwell Tower Gillian Laidlaw - Mountjoy House Fiona Lean - Ben Jonson House Jane Smith - Barbican Association Professor Michael Swash - Willoughby House Mark Bostock – Frobisher Crescent Graham Wallace – Andrewes House

In Attendance:

Gareth Moore – Chairman of the Barbican Residential Committee Professor John Lumley – Member of the Court of Common Council, Ward of Aldersgate

Officers:

Karen Tarbox Michael Bennett Helen Davinson Mike Saunders Barry Ashton Mike Saunders Anne Mason Amy Carter Colin Chuter Mark Jarvis Petra Sprowson	- - - - - -	Community and Children's Services Community and Children's Services Chamberlain's Chamberlain's Department of the Built Environment
Julie Mayer	-	Town Clerk's

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Chris Mouncey (Deputy Chairman); John Taysum and Gordon Griffiths.

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

John Tomlinson declared a general interest in respect of items 13, 14 and 15 as his wife is a member of a working party on the Barbican Estate.

3. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 1st September 2014 were approved.

4. BARBICAN LISTED BUILDING MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES - VOLUME IV -LANDSCAPE SPD

The Committee received a report of the Director of the Built Environment in respect of the Barbican Listed Building Management Guidelines. During the discussion on this item, the following matters were raised/noted:

- Members asked if the maps of significant fixtures could be part of the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).
- Any minor changes (outside of the Listed Building Guidelines) would be circulated annually for comment.

RESOLVED, that:

- 1. The Barbican Listed Building Management Guidelines Volume 4, Landscaping SPD Guidelines Volume 4 (Landscaping SPD) be endorsed and recommended for approval by the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC).
- 2. The Barbican Listed Building Management Guidelines Volume 4, Landscape Part 2 (Good Practice) and Part 3 (Green Infrastructure) be noted.

5. SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT (SLA) QUARTERLY REVIEW

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services which updated Members on the review of the estate-wide implementation of Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and Key Performance Measures (KPI's) for the quarter July to September 2014.

Members were very pleased to note that this report represented some of the highest standards achieved so far. The Chairman reminded Members that he always welcomed suggestions on the SLA/KPI performance outside of the regular RCC meetings.

RESOLVED, that:

The report be noted.

6. PHYSIOTHERAPIST: 1, THE POSTERN, BARBICAN ESTATE - LEASE SURRENDER AND NEW LETTING

The Committee received a redacted report of the Director of Community and Children's Services in respect of the Physiotherapist practice at 1, The Postern, Barbican Estate (lease surrender and new letting). Members welcomed this report as the service was highly valued by residents on the Barbican Estate.

RESOLVED, that:

The report be noted.

7. **PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS**

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services, which advised members of the sales and lettings which had been

approved by officers since the last meeting, acting under delegated authority and in accordance with Standing Orders.

RESOLVED, that:

The Sales and Lettings report be noted.

8. SERVICE CHARGE EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ACCOUNT - LATEST APPROVED BUDGET 2014/15 AND ORIGINAL BUDGET 2015/16

The Committee received a joint report of the Director of Community and Children's Services and the Chamberlain, which set out the latest approved budget for 2014/15 and original 2015/16 for revenue expenditure; proposed for inclusion within the service charge in respect of dwellings. Members noted that the report did not include any expenditure or income pertaining the car parking or stores.

During the discussion of this item, the following matters were raised/noted:

- Members felt that it would be helpful to see an apportionment of centralised services across the estate.
- The Chairman was pleased to advise that the work of the underfloor heating party had been very effective; i.e. if the same amount of energy were to be used this year, as compared to 2 years ago, it would have cost 6% more. If the new contract had not been put in place, there would have been an increase of 27%. Members noted that there was a spike in January 2014, when the previous contract had ended.
- Members asked for an explanation about the charges for Supervision and Management and House Officers and why the numbers were changing.

RESOLVED, that:

The Service Charges Expenditure and Income Account (lasts approved budget 2014/15 and original budget 2015/16) be recommended to the BRC for approval.

9. REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS - LATEST APPROVED BUDGET 2014/15 AND ORIGINAL 2015/16 - EXCLUDING DWELLINGS SERVICE CHARGE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

The Committee received the annual submission of the Revenue and Capital Budgets, overseen by the Barbican Residential Committee. In particular, it sought approval, by the BRC, of the provisional revenue budget for 2015/16, for subsequent submission to the Finance Committee. Members noted that details of the Committee's draft capital budget were also provided and the budgets had been prepared within the resources allocated to the Director.

RESOLVED, that:

The provisional 2015/16 revenue budget and the draft capital budget be recommended to the Barbican Residential Committee for approval.

10. COMMUNAL REPAIRS AND REDECORATIONS PROGRAMME

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services in respect of the repairs and redecorations programme for the Barbican Estate.

During the discussion of this item, the following matters were raised/noted:

- Members asked to see the outline programme of works.
- Officers advised that, when works were planned, they were co-ordinated with the Arts Centre.
- Members noted that the report before them had been written following consultation with contractors.
- Officers explained that one-off contracts were more expensive than longer-term agreements but if value for money could not be achieved, then a longer-term contract would not be entered into.
- Members asked for a comparator against the previous method and suggested that an officer from the Chamberlain's Procurement Team be in attendance at the BRC when this report was discussed.

RESOLVED, that:

A revised report, addressing the concerns set out above, be presented to the Barbican Residential Committee on 8 December 2014.

11. WATER SYSTEM TESTING AND ASSOCIATED SAFETY WORKS

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services in respect of the water system testing and associated safety works and the Barbican and the HRA estates. In accordance with the queries raised on the previous report, Members suggested that an outline of the intended works would be helpful, along with a rationale behind the proposed approach.

RESOLVED, that:

A revised report, addressing the concerns set out above, be presented to the Barbican Residential Committee on 8 December 2014.

12. CAR PARK AND BAGGAGE STORES CHARGING POLICY

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services, which sought to extend the current charging policy for both car parking and baggage stores on the Barbican Estate, for a further 3 years and from March 2015, in respect of the car park and baggage stores. Members noted that a policy for charging for the new bicycle stores was still under discussion and there would be an update at the next meeting.

RESOLVED, that:

The report on the charging policy for the Car Park and Baggage Stores be recommended to the Barbican Residential Committee for approval.

13. WORKING PARTIES - FORMATION AND REVIEW

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services in respect of process for the Estate's Working Parties.

RESOLVED, that:

The draft protocol for setting up and running the Working Parties be agreed, so that it can be implemented at the AGM in February 2015.

14. WORKING PARTY REVIEW - MINUTES OF ASSET MAINTENANCE WORKING PARTY

The Committee received the minutes of the Asset Management Working Party. Officers asked Members to be mindful that the Asset Management Plan would need to be well established before committing to long-term contracts and, if there was limited experience on a particular set of works, there would be more pre-contract engagement with contractors. Condition surveys would also inform the approach. Members suggested that the future replacement of the door entry system should be considered by the Working Party.

RESOLVED, that:

The minutes of the Asset Management Working Party be received.

15. WORKING PARTY REVIEW - MINUTES OF THE PARCEL TRACKING SYSTEM WORKING PARTY

The Committee received the minutes of the Parcel Tracking Working Party. Members noted that given some 66,000 parcels were received on the Barbican Estate every year, on average just 1 a year was lost! A recent survey on parcel receipt and tracking had nearly 600 responses and from this it could be seen that residents were very happy with the service and any suggestions for improvements would be an enhancement.

RESOLVED, that:

The minutes of the Parcel Tracking Working Party be noted.

16. ANNUAL REVIEW OF RTA'S

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk in respect of the Annual Recognised Tenant's Associations (RTA) Audit. The Town Clerk was pleased to advise that all those house groups, which had applied, had achieved RTA status and the position had changed very little since last year's audit. The Chairman advised that it was very helpful to the RCC for the house groups to achieve their RTA status, as it formed part of an accountable process for negotiating with the City of London Corporation.

RESOLVED, that:

The result of the 2014 RTA Audit be noted.

17. UPDATE REPORT

The Committee received the update report of the Director of Community and Children's Services. During the discussion of this report, the following items were raised/noted:

- That in future the You Said: We Did actions list should include original date of action and target dates and, if an outcome has not been achieved, an explanation or the escalation procedures being followed
- In respect of the missing Barbican/City of London insignia formerly affixed to the Estate next to Heron Residential Tower, residents noted that a meeting with Heron had been arranged with the Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department for later this week.
- In response to a question about the BRC's Terms of Reference, the Chairman of the BRC was in attendance and advised that they were rather narrow, when compared to those of the Community and Children's Services and Planning and Transportation Committees; for example. However, Committees could communicate with each other via resolutions.

RESOLVED, that:

The update report be noted.

At 8.25pm Members agreed to suspend standing orders in order to complete the business on the agenda.

18. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

Members noted that any questions, which had not been answered in advance of the meeting and circulated to Members, would follow shortly and be appended to the draft minutes. Members were reminded that there had been a very high volume of questions this time and some of these had been of a highly technical nature and received very close to the deadline.

Further questions were put as follows:

- Following a recent lift failure at Thomas More, which could have had a serious impact on elderly and vulnerable residents, officers advised that procedures would be reviewed and put in place. However, it was understood that such incidents in the tower blocks were extremely rare
- Members asked if there were there any possible terms of the lease that could be used against flats left empty for a number of years And were causing issues to neighbouring flats
- Some members expressed dissatisfaction with the design and positioning of the new bicycle stores. The Listed Building Consent officer had advised that, as they were not a permanent structure and also taking into account that they were not visible to the public, they were outside of the Guidelines. Furthermore, secure bicycle storage

was essential to the Barbican Estate and the 'pods' were fit for purpose; did not take up any more room than the existing bicycle stores and the design had been chosen following consultation with Planning and Transport for London officers. Officers assured Members that there were no access issues but would visit the site again, with an Access Officer and a Defoe House resident. Given this was a Landlord issue, and the correct procedures had been followed, members were advised that, if they remained dissatisfied with the design and location, they should make representations to their elected Ward Members.

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT The Town Clerk would contact Members in order to arrange a date for the 2015 AGM.

The meeting ended at 8.45pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Julie Mayer tel.no.: 020 7332 1410 Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Pre RCC Member QUESTIONS

For 24 November 2014 RCC

 Q. What measures are being taken to control pigeons on the Estate? there seems to have been a huge increase in numbers recently with a flock well in excess of 80 birds (the point at which I stopped counting!) regularly flying around the church/Wallside/Mountjoy House/Barber Surgeons' Hall area

A. The Barbican Estate Office has a contract with a pest control company to both help control pigeon numbers throughout the year, and to discourage seagulls from nesting in the breeding season. The BEO spends over £8000 per annum on this.

2. Q. From Frobisher Crescent House Group: We are expecting the 2014 annual heating/hot water health check to be done this autumn and the House Group has requested this be done before the CSD accepts the system. When will these health checks be done?
A. The BEO and Property Services are currently carrying out a

tendering exercise for the Health Checks.

3. Q. Water Penetration through a Flat Ceiling.

We are concerned about the relative slowness of attention to putting right the source of a water leak into a Gilbert flat. The time scale is below. We expect this is not a unique situation and we ask if steps can be taken to speed up the repair time if a leak is discovered but also to adopt a more regular inspection programme to prevent these predictable occurrences of water damage.

- Water penetration reported to Repairs by resident 16th October. Metwin phone to arrange appointment - 17th October
- Metwin Inspector attends to view ceiling 20th October and same day inspects possible sites of leak
- Resident receives letter dated 22nd Oct. stating that the 'the expansion joint on the roof needs to be re-sealed and also the expansion joint on the 7th floor balustrade will need replacing as well as the expansion joints on all other floors to be checked and resealed as necessary.'
- An undated letter from Property Services arrived shortly after this giving an order number, the name of the appointed Contractor and saying that the contractor has a target date to attend by 19th

November - <u>i.e. 4+weeks after Metwin identified the source of the</u> water penetration.

• Monday 17th November - resident reports water is now dripping through the ceiling into a bucket.

This response time to put right the source of the damage is not considered to be satisfactory. We ask the BEO and PS what improvements can be made in securing a contractor who can attend to repair the reported source of damage more speedily whenever water penetration is reported.

A. We are always reviewing our processes and have already identified areas where we can work more efficiently. These reviews are driven by innovation from officers during their working week and of course customer feedback such as below. We have sat down and reviewed this case study and found that items 1, 2, and 3 were conducted in a timely manner, however item 3 through human error failed as this order should have been raised on a code 2 to be completed within 3 days. We have used this case study and turned it into a training issue which Property Services will take to the customer care centre team. We send our apologies to the resident and the House Chair and thank both parties in taking the time to send this feedback which allows us to train our staff in specifics which is more powerful than just ongoing training.

4. Q. I would like clarification as to why, once again, Ben Jonson Estimated Final Roof Apportionment has been postponed.

A. The issue is that there are a small number of contract instructions that do not have a cost against them. Whilst we know the original tender figure and the final account figure, we do not have full details of the difference. The issue is compounded by the fact that officers who worked on the project and the consultant who project managed are no longer with us. We are in touch with the Consultants practise to try and resolve the matter

5. Q. I also hope Michael will be able to tell us the name of our new energy provider?

A.For UFH – EDF Energy

6. Q. Redecs. If procured for 3-5 years, how much flexibility will there be to allow a particular block's decoration to slip? At present, each block is assessed when it is due for redecoration. If the state of the block is good redecorations can be (and have been) deferred for one or more years. Will a 3-5 year contract preclude that? If it doesn't preclude that will we end up paying the contractor for doing less work than envisaged? Or can the BEO find something else for the contractors to maintain?

A. The redecs contract will be flexible and will allow us to defer works subject to a condition survey

7. Q. At first glance it looks as through procurement for 3-5 years is disproportionately expensive (Procurement for one year costs £123750. Procurement for 3-5 years costs well over five times that – i.e. up to £2.5m). This is presumably because the 3-5 year programme also includes works to address issues found by the water testing. But with no information on the likely works needed or their cost there is no way of evaluating whether this is a better deal or not. Are there some historical costs for works needed (or estimates of works needed) by which this proposal can be assessed?

A. Water testing and works - the report covers Housing and Barbican. We have estimated 40% of the works relate to the Barbican. The actual costs will be confirmed when we move to the next stage of the procurement process (Gateway 5)

8. Q. Non Resident Long Leaseholder Issue.

In Gilbert House there is a flat which has been empty for at least seven years, during which time a neighbouring flat has suffered serious water penetration on two occasions. The water supply is now turned off. On both occasions the City's insurers agreed claims for major redecoration.

The unoccupied flat has also been infested with moths and flies so badly that it had to be treated twice. And for some time the House Officer has visited regularly to pour water into the Garchey and toilet to prevent unpleasant smells penetrating to the corridor. Clearly this is an intolerable situation which creates unnecessary work and expense for the Estate as well as disrupting the lives of residents. In these circumstances can the officers explain what sanctions can be applied by the City, under the terms of the lease, to compel owners of unoccupied flats to keep them in good repair and prevent causing

nuisance to neighbours? A.The BEO is well aware of the flat in question. The first point would be that one of the leaks was caused by Landlords services. Any officer time spent in dealing particularly with this flat has been recharged to the Long Lessee in question and the BEO is in discussion with the Long Lessee. It has long been the policy of the BEO not to "police" our residents. 9. Q. What are the current projected dates for completion for the hard landscaping and the soft landscaping works in Beech Gardens?

A Feb/Mar 2015 and April/May 2015 respectively

10.Q. I understand that there are standby electric generators for the tower block lifts in case the normal electricity supply is interrupted. The Barbican Centre also has its own generator which, apparently, failed when called into use recently. With respect to the residential generators: How many are there? How often are they serviced? How often are they tested?

A.In total we have 10 Diesel Generators. General maintenance is carried out by our resident engineers on a bi monthly basis. This involves checking items such as belts, fuel, oil, battery levels, etc. and running the equipment up to temperature. We have also contracted a specialist company to attend once a year in order to carry out a more detailed examination of the diesel engines and generators.

11.Q. Can you confirm that all the work that House Officers undertake outside the residential blocks, for example on matters relating to podium walkways, are not billed to the blocks Service Charge Accounts?

A. Time is recorded and allocated accordingly. Matters not related to the service charge are not charged there.

12. Q. I understand that under the proposed London Film School redevelopment, the Barbican Art Centre wishes to re-site plant and equipment currently in the Trade Hall into the Breton / Ben Jonson car park. Can BEO officers confirm that Planning Permission will be sought and obtained for this re-siting? Can BEO officers also confirm that they will seek independent advice to ensure that noise and vibration from the re-sited plant and equipment does not cause nuisance, disturbance or inconvenience to the residential flats above? If Planning Permission is not to be sought, what is the legal process for ensuring that appropriate Conditions are put in place?

A.As of 19.11.14 the Barbican Centre and LFS have not approached the BEO with this proposed used of Barbican Estate car park space. Any use of the BEO car parks in this regard, would require a licence and works within the car park would require the Planners to be involved, be it for Planning Permission or Listed Building Consent. Noise and vibration limits could be set within the terms of any licence. 13.Q. Agenda Item 9 – p. 87 "*The IT costs are recharged on number of transactions …*". On what basis is the BEO charged by the City's IT or IS department? Has this system (quoted above) of recharging always been used by the BEO, if not, what was it before, why was it changed and when was it changed? What precisely is a "transaction"?

A. System of recharge has not changed. 'Transactions' is volume of activity on the centralised systems such as finance and includes invoice payments, commitments etc. There is also a charge for the number of computers.

14. Q. Agenda Item 10 – Communal repairs and redecorations – What is the evidence that a 3-5 year programme will result in lower costs to long lessees? Will this option reduce the flexibility of when a house group agrees a programme of redecoration is required? When a contractor underperforms on a 1 year programme it is easy for the City to decide not to re-use the contractor subsequently – if we are locked into a 3-5 year programme, how easy will it be to remove a contractor part way through the programme? How have costs varied across the past economic cycle and is there an optimal time to enter a 3-5 year programme?

A. Procuring long-term contracts offers significant economies of scale for a contractor and for the City (officer time spent procuring each year). There will be the potential to vary the contract- adding or removing blocks subject to condition surveys. Performance will be covered in the contract. Underperformance would result in the contract being terminated

There is not an optimal time to enter into a 3-5 year programme. The benefit of a 3-5 year programme is cost certainty for leaseholders. It also gives a contractor 'work' certainty (subject to performance).

15.Q. Agenda Item 11 – Water Testing – On what basis has the suggested split Barbican Estate : HRA Estate 60% : 40% been made? May we have a third option – 3-5 Years, Barbican Estate ONLY ?

A. The split is based on stock levels and our surveyor's initial estimation of the works that will need to be completed. We do not propose to have a Barbican only option as this would require a duplication of work and therefore additional costs 16.Q. Residents have received Section 20 notices about a new window cleaning contract, which we understand the City intends to be a City-wide contract. Will there be further resident consultation or an RCC working party set up to ensure resident input and involvement in the tender process, as there was when the contract was last tendered?

A.Yes – there will in fact be a cleaning services contract (for COL buildings but not the Barbican) and a window cleaning services contract for mainly residential properties including the Barbican Estate, other City of London Housing Estates/some other City properties. This acknowledges the specialised nature of the current Barbican Estate window cleaning services. The current resident Service Level Agreement for window cleaning services will apply. There will be further leaseholder consultation and there will be resident participation in the tender process.

17.Q. Some house groups are concerned about the security implications of having a city-wide contract where there operatives cleaning the windows may vary from week to week, as opposed to the current situation where the window cleaning staff remain constant. What steps can be put in place to ensure that either the same staff are used, or that the same standard of security is maintained?

A. See Above.

18.Q. We are informed that the retendering is motivated by the City's desire to save money by moving to a single contractor that can offer a lower price for a larger volume of work. However, window cleaning on the Barbican estate is funded from the service charge, and residents are not seeking a reduction in cost, and desire for the existing frequency and quality standard of cleaning to be maintained. Is it possible for the Barbican Estate to opt out of the city-wide contract? If joining with the City-wide contact, is it possible to ensure that the quality standards of the Barbican estate are applied, and not that which the City has decided for its own properties on as a cost-reduction measure?

A.See above.

19.Q. At what stage is the tendering process at present? When is the new contract intended to start?

A.Tender process is due to commence in the Spring and the new contract is anticipated to start Autumn/Winter 2015.

20. Q. What progress is being made in alleviating the flooding which occurs in the Thomas More House Garden after heavy rain, in particular on the path leading from the car park? If the flooding cannot be prevented what plans are in place to enable residents to use the gardens at such times (e.g. through raised walk ways)

A.There is no proper drainage within Thomas More Garden. The BEO are seeking advice from The Landscape Agency as to what measures could be put in place (other than install a drainage system). Raised walkways will also be considered but may also necessitate the need for lighting.

21.Q. What steps are being taken to ensure that lifts are not out of action over the whole of a weekend? (This was recently the case in Thomas More House). In certain types of blocks this can cause very considerable difficulties for certain groups of residents

A.It is extremely rare for this to occur, but further robustness is required to Guideline Lift Services' working practices, and they have therefore instigated the following:

- If out of hours emergencies occur in the future that require specialist technical expertise, Guideline Lift Services will endeavour to contact one of their technicians, rather than just an engineer, who have the required level of knowledge, to attend.
- One of the existing engineers has now been upgraded with specialist training by Otis lifts and is also on the night call rota for Barbican.
- Communication is key, and Guideline Lift Services will ensure their helpdesk team keep the Barbican Estate Office team informed when ongoing remedial works occur.
- Guideline Lift Services are reviewing advanced software packages which enable the Barbican Estate Office team to receive automatic updates on callouts and repairs. It is anticipated that this enhanced service could be rolled out early next year.

In addition to the steps that Guideline Lift Services are taking, the Barbican Estate Office are looking to improve communications, especially during the evenings and weekends, by introducing a standard template for Lobby Porters and car park concierge to fill in and display. This will ensure that all residents are aware of what steps have been taken and that the appropriate staff and contractors have been informed. 22. Q. To everyone's surprise and consternation this week two large bike pods have been installed. They have been placed right on top of an area that is normally used for visitor parking and in particular in an area usually set aside for visitors with mobility problems. We are puzzled by the fact that it appears that the decision on the location of the pods was made without any discussion with the car park attendants or the Defoe RTA committee. Whilst we do not expect to be consulted upon every management issue, and are not against the provision of secure facilities for cyclists, what we would like to question is why place these pods in one of the busiest car parks on the estate and in a location normally used for parking for visitors with mobility issues?

A.The bicycle cages are being provided where the BEO feel there is greatest need. We do appreciate that Defoe is a very busy and full car park but that also applies to bicycles as well. Visitor parking is still possible within Defoe Car Park and there is plenty of overflow in nearby car parks.

23.Q. Regarding the UFH report. Which blocks/towers/dwellings have had their meters replaced with half hourly meters?

A.Recently <u>all</u> underfloor heating meters throughout the estate were replaced with half hourly meters.

- 24.Q. Do any blocks/towers/dwellings remain without half hourly meters? If yes, which ones?
- 25.Q. Do the new half hourly meters record only the Background Underfloor Heating supply? If no, what other energy uses are also included?

A.Yes

26. Q.Virgin Active has notices up saying they are about to embark on refurbishment work that will all be done at night while the gym is closed. What assurances has the landlord received about there being no noisy works during these night time work periods? Residents are concerned that they should not be disturbed by such works.

A. The BEO has also spotted the notices and spoken with Virgin Active about their programme. Their Project Manager has assured us that they will be adhering to the Barbican noisy works timings and only tasks such as painting will be carried out at night. The BEO will follow this quite closely and if necessary, involve the EHO. **27.**Q. Brandon Mews Roof. What was the original estimated life-span of the temporary roof structure erected over Brandon Mews to ensure waterproofing of the roof? There is nothing in the long-term capital budget for replacement of this structure - should this be remedied, and an item inserted?

A.This will form part of the Asset Maintenance Plan including all relevant condition surveys.

28.Q. We understand that the BEO have said that it is not possible to clean this structure adequately so as to remove lichen etc. so as to maintain a presentable appearance. Is our understanding correct? When was this assessment carried out - and, if this was some years ago, has the possibility of cleaning been re-assessed recently?

A.The BEO carried out a comprehensive survey approximately 5 years ago. The external side is prohibited because of access issues. The internal part of the plastic is no longer smooth (quite pitted) and test patches showed no improvement when cleaning was attempted. This could be re-assessed now.

- **29.**Q. Acknowledging that there are many issues to be addressed and investigations to be carried out first, and assuming that the current Beech Gardens method provides a satisfactory solution to the podium waterproofing, what is to prevent a similar solution being used instead of replacing the current plastic roof?
 - A. This could be a possibility.